



www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Licensing

Committee

5th December 2007

Minutes

Present:

Councillor A Fry (Chair) and Councillors Banks, Braley, Field, Gandy, Hartnett, Hicks, Hill and Hunt.

Also Present:

Inspector Ian Joseph (West Mercia Constabulary) and Simon Wilkes (Worcestershire County Council Trading Standards Service)

Officers:

J Cooper, S Garratt, S Hanley, A Heighway and L Roberts

Committee Services Officer:

I Westmore

9. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Boyd-Carpenter, Cookson, R King, W King and Smith.

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

11. MINUTES

RESOLVED that

the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on the 31st of July 2007 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

12. WEST MERCIA CONSTABULARY / WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE

The Committee welcomed Inspector Ian Joseph of West Mercia Constabulary and Simon Wilkes of the County Council's Trading Standards Service to the meeting.

Inspector Joseph provided a police perspective of licensing. The importance of licensing to the Police was stressed, given that the use and misuse of alcohol resulted in many instances of criminal activity,

Licensing Committee

5th December2007

anti-social behaviour and disorder. The glamorisation of binge-drinking was highlighted as a particular problem.

It was stated that the problems experienced within Redditch were not extraordinary but were similar to those faced by many other communities throughout the country. Members were informed of particular initiatives that were undertaken by the Police, including a recent crackdown on underage drinking in the Winyates area which had resulted in the seizure of 87 separate items of alcohol from under 18s within a two week period.

Details were given of further police action related to the misuse of alcohol. Operation Capital Two was mentioned, this being the deployment of considerable numbers of Officers on Friday and Saturday evenings in the Town Centre to prevent the escalation of drunken behaviour. This operation was obviously to the detriment of policing across the rest of the Borough but was considered essential.

The imposition of a Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) for the Town Centre had proved a success story, with the removal of most instances of street drinking from the area, most particularly that section around Church Green.

Licensed premises that were deemed to have a link with alcohol fuelled violence were subject to direct intervention from the Police. Licensees were invited to the Police Station for meetings with the Police and other responsible authorities and the practice had been successful in curtailing problems. The Police continued to gather intelligence in order to highlight potential problems. At the present time, Unicorn Hill was showing as a particular problem area through crime risk surveys.

Inspector Joseph commended the goal of the Dare to Dream initiative of creating a safer urban town. For the future the Police wanted a sustained improvement in community safety throughout the Borough. It was stressed that the Police would not bring forward reviews or suggest additional conditions on applications unless they considered it absolutely necessary.

Simon Wilkes commenced his update by noting that it was a year since his last visit to the Licensing Committee.

The Members were reminded that the Trading Standards Service carried out two series of test purchases for each District during the course of a year. During 2006 Redditch had performed worst of all the Districts in the County whereas, in the current year, only one test purchase had resulted in an under age sale. This demonstrated that the continued action of the Service to identify instances of under age sales was having the desired effect.

2

3

Licensing Committee

The Service was not complacent and recognised that an increasing problem was the purchase of alcohol by over 18s for consumption by under 18s. The Service was working closely with the Substance Misuse Team and a new poster scheme was underway. Another initiative that had commenced was the Responsible Retailer Scheme and it was noted that a number of premises within Redditch had already signed up to this.

The measures in place highlighted the approach adopted by the Service, providing support to businesses in addition to using the enforcement powers open to it . No reviews had been triggered by the Trading Standards Service within Redditch to date but, again, it was stressed that any such action would not be undertaken lightly.

Members commented upon aspects of the presentations. It was noted that images of disorder and binge-drinking on television were often produced with the active co-operation of the Police, potentially weakening the argument against the glamorising of such behaviour. Inspector Joseph acknowledged that the Police did need to bear in mind the differing priorities of the mass media when becoming involved in such ventures. The benefits of the Police being present at Licensing Sub-Committee hearings when there were community safety concerns but the Police had not made representations were highlighted. It was noted that this matter was actively under discussion as the advantage to both sides was apparent.

Clarification was sought as to the extent of partnership working between education welfare, child employment officers and the trading standards service. It was suggested that this area was of importance, given that child workers were particularly susceptible to making under age sales. The illegality of certain forms of employment undertaken by children was a related concern, albeit beyond the remit of the Licensing Committee.

Views were expressed as to the appropriateness of the poster that had been produced to deter the making of under age sales. The objective of the poster was thought commendable but it was suggested that the wording and imagery could be revised to enhance its impact and effectiveness.

RESOLVED that

the oral reports be noted.

13. FINDINGS FROM VISIT TO CARDIFF – LICENSING AND THE REGULATION OF THE NIGHT TIME ECONOMY

The Committee received a report that had been prepared on behalf of the Redditch Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) arising from a visit to Cardiff by Members and Officers of the Council and representatives of other responsible authorities. The view of the Licensing Committee was being sought prior to the issues contained within the report being considered by the Executive Committee and Council.

Officers explained that the aims of the measures detailed within the report were a reduction in the harm that alcohol caused and increased conformity with the aspirations outlined in the four licensing principles by licensed premises. The CDRP had analysed alcohol related crime and disorder across the Borough and, in the light of information gathered in Cardiff, had come forward with a number of recommendations for achieving these overall aims. In respect of the Council's Licensing function, it was noted that a review of the service was to take place which could have implications for the content of future reports.

Members welcomed the report and many of the suggestions and recommendations that it contained. Certain matters caused considerable debate within the Committee.

The proposal that Members of the Licensing Committee should be better acquainted with the general night-time economy of Redditch and the premises that were the subject of individual applications found favour with most. Increased background knowledge of the applications under discussion and the generalities of the licensing context were seen as positives, although it was recognised that care would need to be taken so as not to compromise Members of a Sub-Committee.

Enhanced training for Members was welcomed, although there was some debate as to the most appropriate form for this training. The benefit of objective assessment of the knowledge of Members in Licensing matters following training was considered but no conclusion reached as to the necessity for such a requirement. Officers outlined the extent of commitment involved in the training course detailed within the report, which was minimal. One difficulty raised was the potential length of time between the receipt of training and Members' subsequent involvement in a hearing. For this reason it was suggested that the provision of refresher training was as important a need to fulfil.

Licensing Committee

5

The use of plastic drinks containers to reduce instances of wounding was thought by a number of Members to be a useful measure that could be deployed when and where appropriate, if necessary through the imposition of a condition. The superior quality of modern plastic receptacles was highlighted in this regard.

The culture of excessive drinking was condemned and there was general agreement that tackling this would greatly assist in modifying the behaviour of those who presently caused disorder in the Town Centre and elsewhere. However, it was recognised that this was beyond the scope of the Licensing Committee to address.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the report be noted; and
- 2) the content of the report be endorsed.

14. LICENSING ACT 2003 – REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

Members of the Committee considered the draft Statement of Licensing Policy prior to its submission to Council for final adoption.

The Committee endorsed the draft Statement of Licensing Policy, subject to the amendment to the section on the promotion of equality on page 608. It was apparent that the objective of a consistent approach to service delivery across the two Counties of Herefordshire and Worcestershire through a standardised Policy had resulted in the Council's current statement on the promotion of equality being omitted.

A further proposal raised by Members during consideration of the item was the insertion of a statement on the abuse of child employment regulations. Officers undertook to look into this matter in consultation with the Member who had raised it for consideration. It was noted that the Statement of Licensing Policy should remain under constant review once adopted, providing the scope for such an amendment in due course if it was deemed appropriate.

RECOMMENDED that

1) the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy be amended as proposed following the consultation process and as attached to the report to Licensing Committee at Appendix A, subject to the following;

6

Promotion of Equality

DELETE:

We are committed to eliminating all forms of unlawful discrimination, the promotion of equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups. In line with our Equality Statement we will monitor for any impacts resulting from this policy".

AND ADD:

"This Statement of Policy recognises the Licensing Authority's obligations under the Race Relations Act 1976 (as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000), to have regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups, and other "equalities" obligations under relevant statutory enactments.

This policy is also intended to operate within the Council's commitment to equalities and diversity including:

- Equal treatment regardless of race, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, with reasonable adjustments where necessary in line with the disability discrimination act
- Working to eliminate unlawful discrimination
- Promoting equal opportunities
- Promoting community cohesion, including good relations between people from different racial groups
- Providing reasonable access to interpretation or support on request
- Responding to the needs of all, and working to engage all sections of the community

This policy will be assessed as part of a rolling programme of reviews to ensure that it does not have a detrimental or disproportionate effect on any group. Any concerns that the policy is operating in a way that could be construed as discriminatory should be passed to the responsible Manager and will be dealt with as part of the official Complaints Procedure, in line with the Council's Equality Schemes" (the Council's approved Equalities Statement); and

2) Officers be requested to investigate and develop policies and procedures, both town wide and area specific, that will ensure a safe and thriving night time economy in the Borough, for Members' further consideration.

5th December2007

15. LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS – RESERVE MEMBERS

Further to a request made at the previous meeting of the Committee, Members received a report containing additional information on the attendance of Reserve Members at hearings of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

It was noted that the present system worked quite adequately and that there were no obvious alternatives that would provide the same level of assurance that unnecessary adjournments could be avoided.

RESOLVED that

the report be noted.

16. LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS

Thee were no further matters raised under this item.

The meeting commenced at 7.00 p.m. and closed at 9.05 p.m.

CHAIR

Committee

Executive

8